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THIS IS A CAPITAL CASE

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF ARKANSAS

PINE BLUFF DIVISION
DAMIEN WAYNE ECHOLS, ) Case No. 5:04CV00391-WRW
)
Petitioner, ) DECLARATION OF
) DENNIS P. RIORDAN IN
VS. ) SUPPORT OF SECOND
AMENDED
PETITION FOR A WRIT
LARRY NORRIS, Director, OF HABEAS CORPUS

)
)
Arkansas Department of Corrections, )
)
Respondent. )

)

I, Dennis P. Riordan,, declare under penalty of perjury that:

1. 1 am counsel for petitioner Damien Echols in this matter.

2. I'have viewed the HBO documentary named “Paradise Lost” about the
Echols prosecution.

3. During a meeting with the family of the victims prior to the Echols trial
recorded as part of the documentary, prosecution Brent Davis stated of Jesse
Misskelley: “Unfortunately, we need his testimony real bad.” Davis further stated

that without Jesse Misskelley, the odds of getting a conviction against Echols and
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Baldwin might be “50/50.”

4. At another point in the documentary, Detective Gary Gitchell appears at
a press conference following the arrest of the three defendants in June of 1993.
After being asked the strength of his case on a scale of ten, Gitchell replies;
“Eleven.”

5. I have reviewed a transcript of the statement taken by interrogators from
Jesse Misskelly on June 3, 1993. Early in his statement, Misskelley said that the
victims were hit before Misskelley left. Later he mentions that Echols and
Baldwin were “screwing them and stuff, cutting them and stuff,” so he ran off.
Misskelley had made no reference to a knife in his statement prior to being asked
by Detective Ridge: “Who had a knife? Misskelley then responded that Baldwin
did. Later, after Misskelley had said one boy was cut on the face, Ridge, in an
apparent attempt to get information on the Byers’ genital injuries, told Misskelley
that another boy was cut and asked where. After Misskelley stated “at the
bottom,” Ridge suggested the “groin area,” to which Misskelley made no reply.
Finally, Ridge asked Misskelley if he “knows where his penis is,” and Misskelley
agreed “that’s he was cut at.” It was Detective Gitchell, not Misskelley, who then
supplied the name of Byers for the boy being referred to.

6. Exhibit AAA to this memorandum consists of copies of photographs of

lists drawn up by jurors during their deliberations at petitioner’s 1993 trial. These
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lists have been maintained by investigating authorities along with other exhibits in
the case. These photographs were taken by Ken Moses, an investigator for Jason
Baldwin, during an inspection of trial exhibits conducted in the presence of
representatives of the prosecution.

7. Echols has offered as exhibits in support of his pleading copies of
articles from the Arkansas Democrat-Gazette. These copies were downloaded
from internet sites, and on that basis I believe them to be accurate reproductions of
the articles themselves.

8. On September 22, 2006, I participated in a video teleconference with
Doctor Werner Spitz during which Spitz discussed his preliminary conclusions
concerning the issues of forensic pathology in this case. Those conclusions are as
described in paragraph five of Section I(B)(1) of the memorandum.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed this 27" day of October, 2007, at San Francisco, California

/s/ Dennis P. Riordan
DENNIS P. RIORDAN
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From Arkansas Democrat-Gazette
WITNESS FOLLOWED TRAIL TO CULTS 'INVESTI ...

Date: 01/29/94
Category: NEWS
Page: 1A . X

GLEN CHASE, Democrat-Gazette State Reporter

Image: Photo by Rick McFarland, Arkansas Democrat-Gazette

TELLS OF CULT RITUAL -- Victoria Hutcheson (right) sits next to Diana
Moore during a recess Friday in the capital murder trial of Jessie

Lloyd Misskelley Jr. Hutcheson testified that she attended a satanic

cult ritual with Misskelley and co-defendant Damien Echols. Moore is

the mother of Michael Moore, one of three 8-year-old boys killed in

May 1993 in West Mempbhis.

AT A GLANCE '

Previous highlights in the capital murder trial of Jessie Lloyd Misskelley Jr.:

Jan. 18: Start of Misskelley's trial on three counts of capital murder is delayed a day because of snow and
ice in Corning (Clay County).

Jan. 19: Jury selection begins; four jurors selected.

Jan. 20: Attorneys complete jury selection, picking seven women and five men from a pool of about 300 people.
Jan. 26: Trial resumes with opening arguments and testimony from 10 witnesses.

Prosecutor acknowledges Misskelley may be only an accomplice in the slayings, but adds that he is as
guilty as the killers.

Defense attorneys claim police coerced Misskelley's statement that placed him at the crime scene, and
that Misskelley can prove he was 40 miles away when codefendants killed the boys.

Jan. 27: Testimony continues with prosecutors calling six witnesses. .

Prosecutors play Misskelley's taped police statement, in which he admits his and his codefendants'
satanic cult involvement. He describes their stalking and capture of the three West Mempbhis boys, and
the sexual assaults, mutilations and beatings of the children. He

also said he saw one boy strangled.

Victims' parents become upset and leave courtroom during graphic testimony about the boys' deaths.
Pamela Hobbs, mother of Steve Branch, tells reporter: "It needs to be shown and aired to let people know
what goes on in this kind of ritual. Satan worshipers is what they call themselves."

Defense attorneys point out flaws in Misskelley's statement, including that medical examiners found no
semen or tissue damage normally associated with child rape; police could not identify any other "cult"
members; officials determined the codefendants killed

the boys at least seven hours later than stated; and that codefendants used shoelaces and not ropes to bind
the boys.

WITNESS FOLLOWED TRAIL TO CULTS 'INVESTIGATED' ACTIVITIES OF 3 CHARGED IN SLAYINGS
CORNING -- A woman whose children played with three 8-year-old homicide victims testified that she
"investigated" cult activities in West Memphis but never suspected cult member Jessie Lloyd Mlsskelley

Jr. could have played a role in the slayings.

Victoria Hutcheson of Marion (Crittenden County), who last April moved to Highland trailer park where
Misskelley lived, said Friday that her efforts led her to meet co-defendant Damien Echols and attend a

32
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From Arkansas Democrat-Gazette

cult meeting a few weeks after the May 5 slayings.

"I thought I would play detective," Hutcheson testified. "I had heard a lot of things about Damien
Echols."

Misskelley, 18, of Marion; Echols, 19, of West Memphis; and Charles Jason Baldwin, 16, of Marion, are
charged with three counts each of capital murder in the deaths of Christopher Byers, Michael Moore and
Steven Branch, all of West Memphis.

Investigators have tied the slayings to cult activities by Misskelley and his co-defendants.

Officers found the boys' naked bodies May 6, 1993, in the Ten Mile Bayou drainage channel near
Interstate 40.

Misskelley's trial at the Clay County Courthouse entered its third day of testimony Friday and is expected
to continue through next week. Echols and Baldwin are scheduled to be tried Feb. 22 in Jonesboro.
Defense attorney Daniel T. Stidham said he expects to begin defense arguments after the prosecution
wraps up Monday morning. Stidham told Circuit Judge David Burnett of Osceola (Mississippi County)
that he needs four days to present witnesses and evidence.

Much of the testimony revolves around a confession Misskelley gave police June 3 before his arrest.
While some details were wrong, the statement implicates Echols and Baldwin in the second-graders' deaths.
Although police detective Bryn Ridge testified Thursday that he could identify no other cult members,
Hutcheson told the court that she went to a cult meeting attended by 10 to 15 people, including Echols
and Misskelley.

Hutcheson, who wore a red ribbon and angel lapel pin similar to those worn by the victims' mothers,
testified that she used a borrowed library card to take out books on witchcraft and the occult to convince
Echols of her interest.

She said she eventually won an invitation to an "esbat," or cult meeting, and left with Echols while
Misskelley stayed.

"Jessie and I, I thought we were very close, good friends. So he did spend a lot of time with us,"
Hutcheson said. She-said Misskelley stayed at her home the night before his arrest "to protect me from prowlers."
Defense attorneys Stidham and Gregory Crowe, both of Paragould, lost an attempt to prevent testimony
about a photograph of Christopher Byers reportedly taken a few weeks before the slayings as he stood in
his carport.

Byers' mother, Melissa, testified that Christopher said a man dressed in black took his picture, frightening
him, while she and her husband, Mark, had gone to a corner store.

Misskelley's confession said the cult had a briefcase containing drugs, a gun and a photograph of one of
the boys. He also said the group had stalked the victims.

"When we pulled up into the carport, Christopher came running out and said, ‘A man was here and he
took a picture of me,' " Melissa Byers testified. She said her son described a man wearing black shoes,
pants, shirt and coat.

Echols had developed a reputation for wearing black.

Early in the day Friday, West Memphis police 1nspector Gary Gitchell defended tactics he and Ridge
used to encourage Misskelley to talk.

Defense attorneys view the confession as coerced.

Investigators showed Misskelley a photo of one victim and played a tape of a young child saying,
"Nobody knows what happened but me."

In his confession, Misskelley erred on some details, but said his co-defendants beat the boys, cut them
with knives and sexually mutilated at least one of the boys. A state medical examiner testified Thursday -
that someone mutilated Christopher Byers' genitals.

Misskelley originally said the victims skipped school and that Echols and Baldwin killed them around
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* From Arkansas Democrat-Gazette

noon. He also said they bound the boys with brown rope.

However, others testified that the boys attended school, that they died after 7 p.m., and had their hands
and feet bound by shoelaces.

"Jesse simply got confused," Gitchell told Stidham during cross-examination. "It's quite common to take
confessions with details that are wrong."

Gitchell told deputy prosecutor John Fogleman that only Misskelley knew the specific injuries out of "at
least 100" of the people interviewed.

Hutcheson said her 8-year-old son, Aaron, spoke the words used in the tape recording that police used to
encourage Misskelley to speak about the crime.

During afternoon testimony, Arkansas Crime Laboratory forensics experts said they found no fibers or
-fingerprints on evidence that connected Misskelley to.the victims.

Lisa Sakevicius, a state trace evidence expert, said she matched fibers found on the shoelaces with shirts
seized from Echols' and Baldwin's homes.

Sakevicius also testified that Misskelley's hair did not match samples taken from the bodies.

State serologist Kermit Channel testified that officials found no semen on pants seized from Baldwin and
Echols, but that they did have questionable stains. Officials sent strips from the pants to Genetic Designs
of Greensboro, N.C., for further testing.

Michael DeGughelmo director of forensic analysis for Genetic Design, said tests on tissue samples taken
from the shoelaces could not be matched with any defendant. DeGuglielmo said tests did confirm the
presence of DNA, but examiners did not have enough material to match it with any defendant.

Fogleman won permission from Burnett to introduce as evidence a book seized from Echols' home June 3
entitled "Never on a Broomstick." The book is about witchcraft, which it described as a "secret religion."
Writer Frank R. Donovan covers the history, rites and ceremonies of witchcraft.

Friday's session adjourned shortly bcfore 3 p.m. Fogleman said the day's testimony went faster than
expected.

Edited by: AL at: 2/1/02 5:09:46 pm
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cessed: the -deliberations-at 12:10;-
telling Jurors to return at 9:30 this-
" morning.:

Misskelley, 18, is charged with
‘the May § capital murders of cight-
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In his closmg argument, Deputy -
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February 5. 1994, Saturday

SECTION: NEWS; Pg. 1A

LENGTH: 1488 words

HEADLINE: JURY CONVICTS MISSKELLEY TEEN DRAWS LIFE TERM IN SLAYINGS
BYLINE: GLEN CHASE AND LARRY YOUNG, Democrat-Gazette State Reporters

BODY:
CORNING -- Members of Jessie Lloyd Misskelley Jr.'s family burst into tears Friday after Circuit Judge
David Burnett announced that jurors had convicted Misskelley of first-degree murder in the death of 8-

year-old Michael Moore.

A Clay County jury Friday also convicted Misskelley, 18, of Marion (Crittenden County), of two counts
of second-degree murder in the deaths of Christopher Byers and Steve Branch. .

Burnett of Osceola (Mississippi County) accepted the jury recommendations and imposed the maximum
penalties for the crimes -- life in prison for first-degree murder and 20 years each for the second-degree
murder counts. He also set the sentences to run one after another.

A prominent Little Rock defense lawyer said anyone serving a life sentence for first-degree murder does
not qualify for parole. "Life is life in Arkansas," John Wesley Hall said.

While some states allow parole for people serving life sentences, the only way they can be released in
Arkansas is through executive clemency, Hall said.

"The difference is meaningless" between sentences of life in prison for first-degree murder and life in
prison without parole for capital murder, he said.

"You just don't reduce life sentences without reason," he said.

The jury of seven women and five men deliberated 10/4 hours during two days before deciding not to
convict Misskelley of capital murder in the deaths, choosing to convict on the lesser crimes. Jurors
deliberated another 30 minutes to reach their recommendations on sentence lengths.

Prosecutors charged Misskelley with capital murder June 4, 1993, after he confessed to West Mempbhis
police that he played a role in the May 5 slayings. That charge carries a sentence of death or life in prison
without parole.

Jurors indicated in court that they did not wish to talk to the media about their deliberations.

Misskelley told police he helped subdue the victims but left before two other teen-agers killed them. He
told police that co-defendants Damien Wayne Echols, 19, of West Memphis, and Charles Jason Baldwin,
16, of Marion, beat, cut and sexually abused the boys.
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Searchers found the boys' nude bodies May 6 submerged in the Ten Mile Bayou drainage ditch near
Interstate 40. They were bound hand and foot with their clothes pushed into the mud.

Echols and Baldwin are to go on trial Feb. 22 in Jonesboro.

During the trial, which began with testimony Jan. 26, defense attorneys claimed that police coerced
Misskelley's confession. They called witnesses who testified that Misskelley wrestled in Dyess
(Mississippi County) the night of the slayings.

Prosecutors argued that Misskelley's statement was voluntary.

Police suggested the slayings were cult-related. While one state witness said she attended a cult meeting
with Misskelley and Echols, a police investigator testified he could not locate other cult members.

During the sentencing hearing after the verdicts, Prosecuting Attorney Brent Davis and Deputy
Prosecuting Attorney John Fogleman asked the jury to impose the maximum penalties. A first-degree
murder conviction carries a sentence of life or 10-40 years in prison. Second-degree murder carries a
penalty of 5-20 years in prison and//or a $ 15,000 fine.

"Tt's almost over for you," Fogleman told jurors. "But for the Moores, the Branches and the Byerses, it's
not ever going to be over." '

He said sentencing "is about responsibility."
Misskelley went to the crime scene, a wooded area known as Robin Hood Hill, knowing the boys would
be beaten, Fogleman said. He said the jury needed to recommend a maximum sentence to "stop this kind

of junk; stop kids from doing these stupid, crazy things."

Davis urged jurors to remember the terror the boys must have felt and urged jury members to recall
pictures of the battered bodies.

"You'll want to shut out that memory for the rest of your lives," Davis said. "But think of the agony and
torture those boys went through that afternoon."”

Defense attorney Gregory Crow of Paragould urged jurors to consider "what Jessie said he did and what
Jessie said he didn't do."

Crow noted that Misskelley, 17 at the time of the crime, comes from a troubled family and has a low IQ -
- in the mid-70s.

Tension grew when Burnett announced shortly before noon that the jury had reached a verdict.
Four state troopers waited in the back of the courtroom as three Corning police officers and four Clay

County deputies stood between Misskelley and spectators while Burnett read the verdict.
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Burnett warned spectators —-including relatives of the victims and Misskelley -- that he would tolerate no
"emotional outbursts."

None occurred, aside from quiet sobs from members of Misskelley's family.

During sentencing, Misskelley gave one- or two-word replies when Burnett asked if he understood the
jury had convicted him. Misskelley indicated satisfaction with his defense attorneys.

Burnett ordered Sheriff Darvin Stow to immediately transfer Misskelley to the state Department of
Correction.

Prison spokesman Alan Ables said Misskelley would be evaluated for one or two weeks at the
department's Diagnostic Unit in Pine Bluff.

"He'll likely go to the Varner Unit" in Grady (Lincoln County), Ables said. "That's typical with youthful
offenders." Ables said that could change because of the violence of Misskelley's offense and available
bed space.

Outside the courthouse, the victims' parents said Echols' and Baldwin's upcoming trial needed similar
verdicts: '

Mark Byers spoke to reporters as he held his crying wife, Melissa, in his arms.

"Tt's some justice," said Byers, whose adopted son died. "Animals like that need to be locked up and put
away."

"My son had no rights when he was brutalized and murdered on a ditch bank," Byers said.

Pamela and Terry Hobbs of Blytheville -- Steve Branch's mother and stepfather -- said the Misskelley
verdicts satisfied them, but it may be too early for the healing to begin.

"We're going on," Terry Hobbs said. "We have another trial to attend."
Pamela Hobbs said she believes "justice will be served there, too."

The parents of Michael Moore -- Diana and Todd Moore of West Memphis --quickly left the courtroom
without comment.

Later, when asked if the sentences pleased him, Moore replied, "What do you think?"

Misskelley said in his confession that Moore escaped. He told police he recaptured the boy and brought
him back.

Melissa Byers spoke bluntly in her assessment of Misskelley's conviction.
"He deserves to be tortured for the rest of his life for murdering and torturing three little children," she
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said, her eyes tearing and face turning red with emotion. "I hope they burn in hell," she shouted.

The Rev. Jim Roper, a Methodist minister who let Misskelley's family sieep on the floor of the First
United Methodist Church in Corning, said the verdicts "shocked" and "dazed" Misskelley's family.

"His mother was bent over a table, sobbing. The rest of them were silently crying," he said.

Roper tried to comfort the family while giving thema § 25 check from a supporter. He also said the
Misskelleys received several letters in support, addressed in care of the church.

Ellen Ellis, Misskelley's stepsister, said, "We ain't done. We hope Jesse can hold up."

While Misskelley said he helped subdue the boys, he told pblice he left the crime scene before his co-
defendants. While he told police he saw at least one boy strangled, an autopsy report indicated no signs
of strangulation.

Much of the trial testimony focused on the investigation conducted by West Memphis police that led to
the arrests.

Defense attorneys criticized tactics police used to encourage Misskelley to talk, arguing that officers
coerced a false confession.

Crow said an appeal would be filed, but declined to discuss specifics.
"I'm satisfied with the way we presented the case," he said.

Davis and Fogleman said it would be inappropriate to comment because Echols and Baldwin still must be
tried.

Davis declined to say whether any attorneys had tried to work out a reduced sentence in return for
Misskelley's testimony in the upcoming trial. Case law forbids use of Misskelley's confession at the next
trial. Prosecutors cannot force Misskelley to testify.

Police inspector Gary Gitchell told reporters that the verdict vindicated his department.

The key evidence was "Jessie Misskelley himself. That was the point he could not argue," Gitchell said
after the verdict.

Gitchell said he was satisfied with the lesser murder convictions. "The good people of Clay County
vindicated me, personally," he added.

Gitchell said he felt sorry for the victims' families and for the Misskelley family: "This tragedy touched
both the families and the community. It even reached into Clay County."

Defense attorneys expressed disappointment with the verdicts.
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"Right now it's kind of hard to think," Daniel T. Stidham of Paragould said as he waited for the
sentencing phase to begin. "I'm just glad they did not come back with capital murder."

GRAPHIC: Image: Photos by Rick McFarland, Arkansas Democrat-Gazette FAMILY COMFORT --
Jessie Lloyd Misskelley Sr. hugs his wife, Shelbia (center), and an unidentified relative Friday after
Jessie Misskelley Jr. was found guilty of one count of first-degree murder and two counts of second-
degree murder. Ellen Ellis, Jessie Misskelley Jr.'s stepsister, is at left. FOUND GUILTY -- Jessie Lloyd
Misskelley Jr. watches Circuit Judge David Burnett on Friday during the sentencing phase of his trial.
Misskelley received a sentence of life plus 40 years. ORDEAL ENDS -- Mark Byers, the adoptive father
of Christopher Byers, and his wife, Melissa, Chris' mother, embrace Friday outside the Clay County
Courthouse. Jessie Lloyd Misskelley Jr. was found guilty Friday in the murder of their son and two other
8-year-old West Memphis boys in May 1993.
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February 23, 1994, Wednesday
SECTION: NEWS; Pg. 1A
LENGTH: 1055 words
HEADLINE: JUDGE LEAVES DOOR OPEN FOR MISSKELLEY TO TESTIFY
BYLINE: GLEN CHASE, Democrat-Gazette State Reporter
BODY: |
JONESBORO -- Circuit Judge David Burnett cleared the way Tuesday for Jessie Lloyd Misskelley Jr. to
testify against two co-defendants charged with capital murder in the deaths of three West Mempbhis 8-

year-olds.

But Burnett ruled that any statement Misskelley gave prosecutors since his Feb. 4 murder convictions is
inadmissible hearsay unless Misskelley takes the stand -- which is still uncertain.

Defense attorneys accused prosecutors Tuesday of improperly urging Misskelley to make a statement or
testify against co-defendants Damien Wayne Echols, 19, of West Memphis, and Charles Jason Baldwin,
16, of Marion.

"There was no prosecutorial misconduct," Burnett said in a bench ruling. "Jessie Misskelley may be
permitted to testify if he chooses to do so."

The debate over Misskelley's possible testimony sidetracked jury selection on the first day of Echols' and
Baldwin's trial.

"We have alleged the prosecutors have engaged in misconduct” in attempting to secure any statement
from Misskelley, attorney Paul Ford said after a private hearing before Burnett.

Ford, of West Memphis, and George "Robin" Wadley Jr. of Jonesboro, represent Baldwin. Val P. Price
and Scott Davidson, both of Jonesboro, represent Echols.

The defense filed a motion Tuesday accusing Prosecuting Attorney Brent Davis of trying to influence
potential jurors in a "grandstand play" by emphasizing a statement Misskelley reportedly made Feb. 4.

It claimed prosecutors tried to circumvent Misskelley's due process rights and interfered with his
attorney-client relationship. '

Misskelley's testimony or statement is important to prosecutors. In a June 3, 1993, confession to West
Memphis police, he said he helped Echols and Baldwin subdue the victims on May 5 and watched as the

teen-agers beat and sexually abused Christopher Byers, Michael Moore and Steve Branch.

That confession can't be used in his co-defendants' trial under prior court rulings. Misskelley can't be
forced to testify, but prosecutors have spent the past week encouraging Misskelley to make a statement or
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testify against his friends.
Davis and Deputy Prosecuting Attorney John Fogleman declined comment about whether Misskelley will
testify or about their efforts to secure his testimony. But both said they were pleased Burnett rejected
complaints that they acted improperly.

"] feel somewhat vindicated," Davis said. "I'm not very fond of being accused of misconduct."

Echols and Baldwin are each charged with three counts of capital murder in the deaths, which police
believe was cult activity.

Searchers found the second-graders bound hand and foot, submerged in the Ten Mile Bayou drainage
ditch near Interstate 40 in West Memphis. All were nude and had been beaten. Christopher was sexually
mutilated.

A Clay County jury earlier this month convicted Misskelley of first- and second-degree murder in the
case. Burnett sentenced him to life in prison plus 40 years. '

To help resolve the statement issue, Craighead County deputies brought Misskelley into the courthouse
about 2:45 p.m. and immediately took him into Burnett's chambers. He left at 4:15 p.m., making no

comment to reporters about whether he would testify.

While Misskelley was at the courthouse, Burnett appointed a third attorney to interview Misskelley,
Phillip Wells of Jonesboro. Burnett declined to say why.

Daniel T. Stidham and Gregory Crow, both of Paragould, represent Misskelley. Stidham declined
comment after the hearing, saying, "I'm not in any position ethically to make a comment."

Stidham said he will file a similar motion alleging prosecutorial misconduct in Clay County where
Misskelley's trial was held.

Burnett denied every part of the motion by the attorneys for Echols and Baldwin, including a request for
a special prosecutor to investigate the allegations.

In the defense motion, Echols' and Baldwin's attorneys called for Burnett to dismiss charges against their
clients; bar prosecutors from talking to Misskelley; forbid Misskelley from testifying; and suppress any
statements he made to police or prosecutors after his conviction.

They also asked the judge to hold prosecutors in contempt of court.

Their motion claimed prosecutors repeatedly tried to get Misskelley to talk, beginning with the deputy
who drove Misskelley on Feb. 4 from Corning to the Diagnostic Unit in Pine Bluff after Misskelley's

conviction.

Stidham indicated he told prosecutors his client did not want to make a statement.
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The defense motion said that Fogleman contacted Misskelley's father Feb. 16 to ask him to convince his
son to testify "in exchange for a 40-year sentence."

The motion said that Clay County Deputy Prosecuting Attorney C. Joseph Calvin called Misskelley's
attorneys Feb. 17 and said Misskelley wanted to make a statement. Misskelley was told not to say
anything.

The motion claimed the Craighead County deputy who drove Misskelley to Calvin's office in Rector
"elicited statements from the defendant." The deputy reportedly encouraged Misskelley to testify against
his co-defendants and claimed the officer "even promised to bring Jessie Lloyd Misskelley Jr.'s girlfriend
to the jail to visit him."

When Stidham and Crow arrived in Rector that night, Davis was at Calvin's office "and had
communicated with their client without their knowledge and consent."

The motion claimed that when Stidham and Crow attempted to speak privately with Misskelley, "Davis
and Calvin burst into the conference room and demanded to take a statement" from Misskelley.

When defense attorneys objected, the motion stated, prosecutors expressed concern that Misskelley
would decline to make a statement. The motion said Misskelley then declared he wanted to make a
statement and left the room, refusing to speak to his attorneys.

Burnett agreed to allow prosecutors to offer Misskelley "use immunity" for his statement. Use immunity
would prevent the statement from being used against Misskelley in future hearings, including appeals.

The motion said prosecutors visited Misskelley on Friday, Saturday and Sunday without his attorneys'
knowledge.

The motion states that Arkansas law bars prosecutors from calling a co-defendant as a witness if they
know the co-defendant has been advised to assert his constitutional right not to incriminate himself.

Jonesboro Bureau Chief Larry Young contributed to this story.
GRAPHIC: Image: Photo by David Gottschalk, Arkansas Democrat-Gazette TRIAL UNDER WAY --
Craighead County Sheriff Larry Emison (left) escorts Damien Wayne Echols in handcuffs Tuesday into

the Craighead County Courthouse. Attorneys are trying to seat a jury in the capital murder trial of Echols
and Charles Jason Baldwin. The two teen-agers are accused of killing three 8-year-old boys.
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MARCH 1994

March 1, 1994, Tuesday

SECTION: NEWS; Pg. 1A

LENGTH: 1655 words

HEADLINE: "'WEIRD' ECHOLS PAINTED AS WITCH-HUNT PREY

BYLINE: LARRY YOUNG AND GLEN CHASE, Democrat-Gazette State Reporters

. BODY:

-- A defense attorney described his client as "weird" and not an "All-American boy," but denied that
Damien Wayne Echols was present when three West Memphis 8-year-old boys were beaten and killed
last May.

On the opening day of testimony Monday, defense attorneys picked apart prosecution testimony as
prosecutors set the stage for possible testimony from a fourth 8-year-old who may have witnessed the
crime. :

- Scott Davidson, one of two Jonesboro attorneys representing Echols, one of the two Crittenden County
teen-agers on trial for three counts of capital murder, told jurors that police ineptly investigated the
slayings of Christopher Byers, Michael Moore and Steve Branch.

Investigators became "sloppy" because they had "Damien Echols tunnel vision" and refused to look at
other evidence they found, Davidson said during opening arguments.

Echols, 19, of West Memphis and a second defendant, Charles Jason Baldwin, 16, of Marion are on trial
in the May 5, 1993 deaths of the three second-graders. The prosecution is seeking the death penalty. A
jury found a third defendant, Jessie Lloyd Misskelley Jr., 18, of Marion, guilty earlier this month of first-
degree murder and two counts of second-degree murder. Circuit Judge David Burnett of Osceola
sentenced him to life in prison, plus 40 years.

Davidson said Echols' reputation resulted in his being singled out by police. Echols liked to dress in
black and reportedly carried around a cat skull.

The teen-agers reportedly belonged to a cult. No motive for the slayings has been provided by
prosecutors.

"You are also going to see that our client, Damien Echols, well, I'll be honest with you, he's not the all-
American boy. In fact, he's kind of weird. He's not the same as maybe you and I might be," Davidson
said.

Police found the victims May 6 bound hand and foot, submerged in the bottom of a drainage ditch
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connected to the Ten Mile Bayou drainage channel behind the Blue Beacon Truck Wash off Interstate 40
in West Memphis.

Police arrested the three teen-agers based on a statement Misskelley gave police describing their _
involvement in the killings. For the last several weeks, prosecutors have tried to get Misskelley to testify
against his friends.

Misskelley's relatives said Monday morning that he will not testify.

Prosecutors called the victims' mothers Monday to describe when they first noticed their children mlssmg
the night of May 5.

Two neighborhood residents reported seeing the boys around 6 p.m. Debra O'Tinger said she saw them
run past her home toward Robin Hood Hill_.

Another neighbor, Bryan Woody, testified that as he left to pick his wife up at work, he saw four boys
walking on a street leading to Robin Hood Hill. While two of the boys rode bicycles, a third carried a
skateboard, he said. A fourth, with "spiky blond hair," followed. However, Woody said, he drove by too
quickly to identify the children.

On Feb. 17, Victoria Hutcheson of Marion said her 8-year-old son, Aaron, told her that he watched the
killings. At a pretrial hearing, Echols' attorney, Val P. Price of Jonesboro, said Aaron may have told
police that the adoptive father of one boy, Mark Byers, could have been present.

Byers labeled the suggestion "a bald-faced lie."

West Memphis police inspector Gary Gitchell used part of Aaron's statement, a tape recording of the boy
saying "Nobody knows what happened but me," to encourage Misskelley to confess. The entire tape
recording has never been played in court or released by police. Both Gitchell and Fogleman have said
Aaron never told them that Byers could be involved.

During opening arguments, one of Baldwin's two attorneys, Paul Ford, told jurors that police found no
evidence linking his client to the crimes.

Ford said opening statements by lawyers are like directions on how to put togéther a puzzle. Sometimes
the picture on the front of the box is needed to help, he said, but police "don't have the box that came

with this puzzle."

Police questioned transients, homeless people, truck drivers and militéry veterans in the search for a
suspect. They even used an FBI-generated criminal profile of a sex offender, Ford said.

"They began looking for known sex offenders, but they weren't looking for a 16-year-old boy," Ford said,
referring to Baldwin.

He said the West Memphis police, aided by Crittenden County deputies, state police and the FBI crime
laboratory in Virginia, could find no evidence putting his client at the crime scene.
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"From their own tests they found nothing, not even a drop of blood," Ford said.

Deputy Prosecuting Attorney John Fogleman admitted that the prosecution would have to put on
"negative evidence" that comes from the Arkansas Crime Laboratory and taken at the crime scene, but
doesn't connect the crime to a particular person.

"There was no blood, no blood, at all," Fogleman said.
There were no fingerprints on the two bicycles found at the scene either, Fogleman confirmed. Despite
that, "The proof is going to show that scientific evidence, statements of these own defendants, and other

evidence, that they caused the deaths ... ."

Prosecutors introduced evidence at Misskelley's trial that linked fibers from T-shirts taken from
Baldwin's and Echols' homes to fibers found at the crime scene.

Defense attorneys got their first chance to raise the potential for an alternative suspect when West
Memphis Patrolman Regina Meek testified about a call she made to a local restaurant whose manager

reported that a "bloody black man" used the restroom the night of the killings.

Meek said she drove to the restaurant, but didn't get out of her car to investigate. The man left before she
arrived.

Defense attorneys raised the same issue at Misskelley's trial.
Fogleman discounted the report then, asking why someone would take the time to clean a crime scene
only to appear in public covered in blood. Significant events leading to the trials of Jessie Lloyd

Misskelley, Charles Jason Baldwin and Damien Wayne Echols:

-- May 6, 1993 -- Authorities find the bodies of 8-year-olds Christopher Byers, Michael Moore and
Steven Branch in a drainage

ditch off Interstate 40 near a West Memphis area known as Robin Hood Hill.

-- May 8 -- Police say the boys had their hands and feet bound, and died from blows to the head.

-- June 3 -- Police arrest Michael Wayne "Damien" Echols, 19, of West Memphis; Charles Jason
Baldwin, 16, and Jessie Lloyd Misskelley, 17, both of Marion. Crittenden County prosecutors charge
each with three counts of capital murder.

-- June 9 -- A Memphis newspaper publishes a transcript of statements Misskelley gave police June 3. In
the transcript, Misskelley says Echols and Baldwin killed the boys while he watched, and that the three

teen-agers belong to a cult whose members eat dogs during rituals.

-- July 8 -- Circuit Judge David Burnett of Osceola is selected to
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try the three teen-agers.
-- Aug. 5 -- Each teen-ager pleads innocent.

-- Sept. 20 -- Worried about adverse publicity, defense attorneys ask to move the trial from Crittenden
County. Burnett agrees to try the teen-agers in Craighead County. He later agrees to move Misskelley's
trial to Corning (Clay County).

-- Sept. 28 -- Witnesses place Echols and girlfriend Domini Teer near the murder scene May 5, the day
that authorities believe the boys died. Detective Bryn Ridge confirms the sexual molestation of one of the

slain boys. Burnett orders the suspects to provide prosecutors with samples of hair, saliva, blood,
handwriting and other items.

--Nov. 4 -- The judge sets Misskelley's trial for Jan. 18, 1994. The trial of Echols and Baldwin is set for
Feb. 22, 1994, in Jonesboro.

-- Dec. 12 -- Burnett hears defense objections, but rules all three defendants may face the death penalty.
-- Jan. 8, 1994 -- Defense experts say police gave Misskelley a

faulty lie detector test. One expert claims Misskelley may not have had a hand in the slayings.
Misskelley's attorneys later say police lied to Misskelley to get him to confess.

--Jan. 13 -- Parts of Misskelley's taped confession are played at a court hearing in which defense
attorneys ask the judge to suppress

the statement. Misskelley claims in the statement that Echols and Baldwin beat and abused the victims as
he watched.

-- Jan. 20 -- Jury selection is completed. Seven women and five men are chosen from a pool of about 300
people. Resumption of trial delayed until Jan. 26. Burnett said the delay was "in the best interests of
justice" but didn't elaborate.

-- Feb. 4 -- Misskelley is convicted of first-degree murder in the death of Michael Moore and sentenced
to life in prison. Misskelley is convicted of two counts of second-degree murder in the other two

boys' deaths and receives two 20-year sentences to be served consecutively.

-- Feb. 11 -- Judge Burnett denies a defense motioﬂ to try Baldwin

and Echols separately.

-- Feb. 16 -- Police confiscate a 3-foot wooden club from the home where Echols' once lived. The trailer's
new tenant finds the club, painted red and with dark stains and hairs on one end, in a bedroom closet. At

a hearing held earlier, Burnett refuses to allow prosecutors or defense attorneys to review separate
interviews recorded by a documentary film crew with Baldwin and Mark Byers, Christopher's adoptive
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father.

-- Feb. 22 -- Jury selection for Echols' and Baldwin's trial in Jonesboro is delayed one day as attorneys
wrangle over whether Misskelley will testify against his two friends. Burnett denies a defense motion
claiming prosecutors improperly bypassed Misskelley's defense attorneys in attempts to secure a
statement or testimony.

-- Friday -- Attorneys select a jury of eight women and four men for Echols and Baldwin following three
days of closed-door questioning.

-- Monday -- Testimony opens in Baldwin's and Echols' trial. Whether Misskelley will testify remains
uncertain. Prosecutors offered Misskelley a reduced sentence and limited immunity for testimony.

GRAPHIC: Image: Arkansas Democrat-Gazette//David Gottschalk LUNCH BREAK -- Charles Jason
Baldwin (left), 16, and Damien Wayne Echols, 19, wait after lunch Monday for the continuation of their
capital murder trial in the May 1993 deaths of three 8-year-old West Memphis boys. Lawyers entered
two of the boys' bicycles (behind Baldwin) into evidence Monday morning. Witnesses said they last saw
the boys riding the bikes in their neighborhood near where authorities found their bound and beaten
bodies the next day. Arkansas Democrat-Gazette//David Gottsch alk FIRST-DAY TESTIMONY --
Damien Wayne Echols' attorney, Scott Davidson, questions West Memphis patrol officer Regina Meek
about her activities on the day officers found three West Memphis boys missing. Echols and Charles
Jason Baldwin are charged with three counts of capital murder each in the boys' slaymgs Testimony in
their trial began Monday in Jonesboro.
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From The Commercial Appeal

MAY 1993

THE COMMERCIAL APPEAL
Friday, May 7, 1993

Section: News

Edition: Final

Page: Al

Memo: Different version, First Al

CORRECTION from May 8, 1993: Pam Hobbs is the mother of Steve Branch,
one of three West Memphis boys found murdered Thursday. A story Friday
incorrectly identified her.

MUTILATED BODIES OF 3 BOYS FOUND IN BAYOU
HUNT ON FOR SUSPECT IN W. MEMPHIS

By Richard Kelley The Commercial Appeal
Staff reporter Lloyd Holbeck and The Associated Press contributed to
this story.

Three 8-year-old boys were found slain Thursday, their bodies submerged in a drainage ditch.

West Memphis police would not comment on the cause of death, but an Arkansas State Police broadcast
Thursday night said West Memphis police were investigating the abduction and sexual mutilation of
three boys.

[other version reads:
Police are searching for whoever killed three 8-year-old schoolmates whose submerged bodies were
found Thursday afternoon in Ten-Mile Bayou.

An Arkansas State Police broadcast alerting regional authorities to the slayings said the hands of the boys
had been tied behind their backs and that they had been sexually mutilated.]

Neighbors last saw Weaver Elementary School second-graders Steve Branch, Christopher Byers and
Michael Moore riding bicycles between 5:15 and 6 p.m. Wednesday. The search by police, parents and
neighbors began at 7:30 p.m. | '

"We do have three homicides," said Insp. Gary Gitchell of the West Memphis Police Department. "I
won't comment on the crime scene or what we found."

Mark Byers, father of Christopher, characterized whoever killed his son as an "animal."

"I hope God shows a little mercy on his soul, because I sure wouldn't," he said.

The bodies were to be sent to Little Rock for autopsies by the state medical examiner.

Christopher Byers lived at 1400 E. Barton, next door to Michael Moore at 1398 E. Barton. Steve
Branch's family lives nearby at 1601 E. McAuley.

Gitchell said the bodies were found at about 1:30 p.m. within 10 feet of each other in Ten Mile Bayou,
the city's main drainage ditch.

The ditch was drained and the bodies retrieved around 4 p.m.
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Authorities said they drained the ditch to search for additional evidence. Police were also searching a
culvert where bicycle tracks and small sneaker prints were found.

The culvert, which connects to the drainage ditch, runs under Interstate 40 near a truck wash. The ditch
was a few hundred yards north of where the children were last seen, and less than a half-mile from the
children's homes.

They were behind the Mayfair Apartments in a wooded, undeveloped area known to residents as Robin
Hood Park.

"Tt's several little ditches or streams that run through the area, from a trickle to two to three feet of water,"
Gitchell said.

"One of my officers found a tennis shoe and, being inquisitive, he just jumped in the water and felt one of
them."

The boys were last seen cutting through the yard of a resident who lived on Goodwin Avenue, just south
of the brush-choked bayou.

Debra O'Tinger, 18, said three boys on two bikes cut through her yard.

"That's where they went in at," she said Thursday. "I told them to get out of my yard."

The bicycles were found 50 yards from the bodies, Gitchell said.

The neighborhood of neat family homes is bounded by apartment buildings to the west, and the bayou to
the north. '

A police barrier was set up at the intersection of W. E. Catt Street and McAuley Drive West, which ends
in a small cul-de-sac beyond which the bodies were found.

About midafternoon, anxious parents were awaiting official word as neighbors massed at the police
barricade on McAuley Drive after hearing one body had been found.

Pam Hobbs, mother of Michael Moore, collapsed when authorities told her that her son's body also had
been found.

"Oh Lord!" she said, collapsing to the asphalt before being raised into the arms of friends and family.
Neighbor Bo Hamrick said he and friends had helped search the area on three-wheelers since about 7
a.m. Thursday. ' :

"It's nothing but woods, woods and trails - a few trails just wide enough to get a three-@#%$ through,"
he said. "I thought, if we get our three- wheelers out, they'll hear us, if they're back there hiding. They
always are."

Gitchell, the lead investigator, said he could not confirm whether a story

from a neighbor who reported seeing two men with some children in the area was accurate.

"We've got our work cut out for us," he said, declining to say if authorities had any suspects.

The state police broadcast made no mention of suspects, but it asked any police agencies investigating
similar crimes to notify West Memphis police.

West Memphis police asked anyone with information about the murders to call Crime Stoppers at (501)
732-4444.

The elder Byers said he was concerned that the Crittenden County Sheriff's Department did not join the
search until Thursday morning despite his repeated requests.

It was not their jurisdiction, he said he was told by a dispatcher.

"If they had brought them out there last night, we would have had a chance of finding those boys alive,"
he said before praising the all-night search effort by West Memphis Police Department officers.

"They could have used some help; hell, yes, they could have used some help," he said.

Sheriff Richard Busby said Thursday night he talked with the dispatcher and sergeant on duty the
previous night and said there was miscommunication between his officers and Byers.

The officers said Byers wanted to know if "this was the right place to call to get a report made out," the
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sheriff said. "They said no, you need to call the city police department."

Busby, who said he knew Byers and considered him a friend, said "if anyone had called us last night,
we'd have been glad to have helped them. We didn't get a call from West Memphis (police) or anyone."
West Memphis's most recent triple murder occurred in 1985, when Ronald Ward, then 15, killed two
elderly sisters and their 12-year-old great- grandnephew. Initially sentenced to death, Ward received a
second trial and got life in prison.

There have been three other homicides in West Memphis this year, two of which authorities said were
justifiable. In 1992, there were 10 homicides in the city.

Mlustration: photo (5): map - Staff

Steve Branch, Christopher Byers, Michael Moore

CAPTION: By Dave Darnell

(Color) West Memphis Patrolman G. C. Masengale comforts Mark Byers, father
of 8-year-old Christopher Byers, one of three boys found slain Thursday in Ten
Mile Bayou in West Memphis.

~ Insp. Gary Gitchell (second from right), of the West Memphis Police
Department, is heading the investigation into the three deaths. Police did not
indicate whether they had identified suspects.
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From Crittenden County Evening Times

West Memphis Evening Times, May 7th, lead story

I transcribed this from what is posted. It seemed to me to have some info not available from other
sources.

Murdered boys found in bayou.
Three 8-year-olds' bound bodies found a half-mile from homes

West Memphis reacted in horror this morning as news of the murder of three 8-year-old boys whose
bound bodies were found in a drainage ditch became known.

Christopher Byers, Michael Moore and Steve Edward Branch were last seen together riding bicycles
north on North 14th Street toward Goodwin Street about 6 p.m. Wednesday. Bodies of the youths, all
neighbors and second grade students at Weaver Elementary School were pulled from 10-Mile Bayou
diversion ditch northwest of the intersection of Seventh and Barton streets about 4 p.m. Thursday. The
site is only a few hundred yards from where they were last seen.

Police have no suspects in the murders, Gary Gitchell, public information officer for the West Memphis
Police Department, said.

The wooded area along both sides of the drainage ditch, between Holiday Gardens subdivision and the
south service road of Interstates 40 and 55, was a favorite haunt of youngsters in the area who nicknamed
it "Robin Hood Hill" and criss-crossed it with bike trails. It had been the focal point of a search for the
youngsters that started Wednesday evening and continued throughout the night and until the bodies were
found early Thursday afternoon.

" was out looking until 4:30 a.m. I walked within 10 or 15 feet of where the bodies were found and I
didn't see them," Mark Byers, father of one of the victims said.

Police were called to an area off the end of West McAuley and W E. Catt streets at 1:30 pm Thursday.
When the call came in, searchers had found a white tennis shoe on the side of the bayou. A few minutes
later, a pair of dark shoes was found in the bayou.

Shortly afterward one body was found. The other two bodies were found a short distance away.

Once the police had cordoned off the area, the families of the three children came to the scene and spoke
with police. Pam Hobbs, the mother of Steve Branch, fainted when she heard the news. She was revived
a few moments later and began screaming and crying.

She was carried by family members to a nearby vehicle.

Gitchell said the three boys' bodies were (page 2) found in the same location, all submerged in the water.
Their two bicycles were found about 50 yards away, also under water. When a detective found the tennis
shoe on the bank of the ditch, Gitchell said, he went into the water, where he found the body of the first
youth.

Gitchell would not comment on published reports that the boys' bodies were mutilated, but he said that
they were bound hand and foot. '
"Not all of that report was accurate. I've refused to comment on what part was inaccurate, for
investigative purposes," Gitchell said. "I will confirm that they were bound." He said police were hoping
for word from the state medical examiner's office by late this afternoon as to the cause of the youth's
death.

Byers, father of Christopher Byers, said Gitchell told him one youth had been hit above the eye, a
second's jaw was injured, and the third "was worse than that." Asked how officers concluded that the
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three deaths were homicide, Gitchell said, "It was plain to an investigator's eye.

"It was homicide. They did not slip and fall (off a pipe that stretched across the bayou, often used as a
bridge)." He described how the body of one of the boys was found by a detective.

"one of my men noticed a shoe. Being inquisitive, he jumped in the water and started feeling around,"
Gitchell explained. "People have been walking though (sic) here all day. We were lucky he (the officer)
saw one shoe."

He said the three bodies were about 10 feet apart and that the two bicycles were found farther up the
bayou.

Officers and volunteers had covered the area where the bodies were found several times before
discovering the bodies in the water, Gitchell said. "That area where the boys were found was saturated
hard and heavy that morning and even the evening before," he said. He estimated there were 50
searchers, including police, volunteers from the Crittenden County Search and Rescue Squad and the
boys neighborhood.

A Memphis police helicopter searched the area from the air, but had to go back to its base at 11 a.m.
The chopper made several sweeps along the interstate and over the wooded area, but nothing was seen
from the air. Robin Hood is a densed (sic) wooded area with heavy undergrowth.

A 30-yard section of the bayou was dammed off with sandbags and the water pumped out of it, in an
attempt to preserve any evidence that might be beneath the water. Gitchell would not say whether
anything was found that would be helpful in the investigation.

All 12 of the police department's detectives are working on the investigation, Gitchell said, and will be
working seven days a week with time off only to eat and sleep. He emphasized the importance of anyone
who may have any information about the murders calling police. More than 250 calls had been received
by early this morning, he said, and each one of those tips will be checked out.

Callers may contact Crittenden County Crimestoppers at 732-xxxx with any information. All calls are
confidential and tipsters may remain anonymous. Crimestoppers offered a reward of up to $2,000 for tips
leading to arrest and conviction.

"If the telephone is busy, please don't give up," Gitchell said. "We're getting a lot of calls. But we want to
talk with everyone who may possibly have any information about this."

Editor's note: Staff members Kay Brockwell, Leonice Watkins, and Kathleen Boyd contributed to this story.

Caption, photo: Gary Gitchell tells Mark Byers, one victim's father, the news of deaths.
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